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          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Good morning.  I

          3  would like to start the Committee on Rules,

          4  Privileges and Elections.  I am Council Member Leroy

          5  Comrie.

          6                 Today we have before us our three

          7  candidates for our consideration.  Ms. Josephine

          8  Bollis (phonetic) RN, CMP, APRNBC, the City

          9  Council's designee to the Health and Hospitals Board

         10  of Directors.  A resident of Brooklyn, serving the

         11  remainder of a five- year term ending on March 20,

         12  2008, replacing Edward Mendez Santiago.

         13                 Meenakshi Shinivasan, a Mayoral

         14  appointee to the Board of Standards and Appeals, a

         15  resident of Manhattan, filling a vacant position for

         16  the balance of a six- year term that expires on

         17  October 6, 2009.

         18                 Hugh James Freun, (phonetic), Esq. A

         19  Mayoral appointee to the Art Commission, a resident

         20  of Manhattan, filling the balance of a three- year

         21  term that expires on December 23, 2005, the

         22  laymember replacing Bud Cohime (phonetic) and

         23  Elizabeth Ryan, a Mayoral appointee to Landmarks

         24  Preservation Commission.  Our Communication M, as

         25  the members, you will notice that there is a letter
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          2  Communication M- 779, was withdrawn pursuant to a

          3  request by the Mayor.  So you will notice that there

          4  is a letter from Mark Shaw, dated the 12th, that

          5  they are withdrawing her name at this time.        The

          6  first person that we are going to have come before

          7  us today, and if you could sit at the chairs,

          8  Josephine Bollis.  Good morning.

          9                 MS. BOLLIS: Good morning.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Members as you

         11  know HAC is a public benefit corporation charged

         12  with the duty of providing high quality, dignified

         13  and comprehensive healthcare and treatment to the

         14  public, especially to those who cannot afford such

         15  services. Their Board of Directors consists of 16

         16  members who administer HAC, included within the

         17  Board's membership with addition to five ex officio

         18  members of ten appointees of the Mayor, five of whom

         19  are designated by the Council for consideration by

         20  the Mayor.

         21                 The term of office for Directors is

         22  five- years, with the vacancy filled under the terms

         23  of original appointment. Directors are not

         24  compensated but are reimbursed for actual expenses.

         25                 Good morning Ms. Bollis.  Could you
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          2  raise your right hand to be sworn in please?

          3                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Do you solemnly

          4  swear or affirm the testimony you are about to give

          5  us is the truth and the whole truth?

          6                 MS. BOLLIS: I do.

          7                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.

          8  Please state your name for the record.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Is the red light

         10  off?  The red light has to be off for the mic to be

         11  on.  It's counter- intuitive.

         12                 MS. BOLLIS: Okay.  Josephine Bollis.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Good morning Ms.

         14  Bollis.

         15                 MS. BOLLIS: Good morning.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you have an

         17  opening statement that you would like to share with

         18  us?

         19                 MS. BOLLIS: No.  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  You're a

         21  resident of Brooklyn?  Can you tell us how you were

         22  approached about being on the HAC Board?

         23                 MS. BOLLIS: Yes.  Council Member Lew

         24  Fidler asked me if I cared to fill the vacancy that

         25  has come before the Board.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  Having

          3  read your background and your information I see that

          4  you are very highly qualified to serve on this Board

          5  and I am proud that you decided to serve our City in

          6  such a manner.

          7                 You do know that staff has advised

          8  you about the potential conflicts of interest that

          9  may arise if you remain a member of the New York

         10  State Nurses Association, the Nurses Association

         11  Political Action Committee, the Doctor McKinney

         12  Community Advisory Board at HACs King's County

         13  Hospital and the Nurses Association of the Counties

         14  of Long Island Political Action Committee?

         15                 MS. BOLLIS:  Yes, they have.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  It is our

         17  understanding that upon appointment to the HAC by

         18  the Mayor you are willing to resign from these

         19  positions, is that correct?

         20                 MS. BOLLIS: Yes, I am. I am.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: All right.  We

         22  would appreciate if you could forward copies of your

         23  resignation letters to us after your appointment.

         24                 MS. BOLLIS: I certainly will.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  Any
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          2  questions from members?  Comment?  Council Member

          3  Clarke?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you for

          5  your indulgence Mr. Chair.  I just wanted to state

          6  to my colleagues and on the record that Ms. Bollis

          7  has a distinguished career in healthcare, well known

          8  to most Brooklynites.  It is my understanding that

          9  she will be actually appointed by the Council, but

         10  as a recommendation of the Brooklyn delegation,

         11  which was a unanimous decision on behalf of all of

         12  us.

         13                 So, I would just like to state to my

         14  colleagues that it is the will of the Brooklyn

         15  delegation that Ms. Bollis represents the best, in

         16  terms of expertise, talent and skill, which is

         17  sorely needed in this time when we look at the

         18  challenges in healthcare, particularly when you look

         19  at what is happening at the Federal and State level.

         20                 Having said that, I would just like

         21  to encourage my colleagues to vote in the

         22  affirmative for Ms. Bollis' appointment today.

         23  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  I

         25  didn't introduce my colleagues that are here, I'm
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          2  sorry.  Council Member Simcha Felder from Brooklyn,

          3  Council Member Melinda Katz from Queens, you just

          4  heard from Council Member Yvette Clarke from

          5  Brooklyn, Council Member and Majority Leader Joel

          6  Rivera from Bronx, Council Member David Weprin from

          7  Queens and Council Member Lew Fidler from Brooklyn.

          8                 We have our esteemed staff from our

          9  Counsel that is helping to make sure that all of the

         10  candidates and all of the appointments are well

         11  investigated and have crossed all their i's and have

         12  dotted all their t's and that is Stu Goldstein,

         13  Charles Davis, and Crystal Acosta.  So, welcome

         14  aboard Crystal.  This is your first meeting.  Also,

         15  Ed O'Malley, my wonderful and esteemed Counsel for

         16  the Committee.

         17                 I see as there are no other

         18  questions, Lew do you want to make a wonderful

         19  statement about Ms. Bollis.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I'll make a

         21  statement about the wonderful Ms. Bollis, if I

         22  could.  Just briefly, I've known   Josephine for a

         23  long time as well as her husband Henry. Until

         24  January 1st she was in my District, after that I

         25  believe she was in Council Member Barron's District.
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          2    She has been an activist in all aspects of

          3  community life for many, many years as a person of

          4  wonderful character and integrity. I think as an RN,

          5  it will bring a unique perspective to the HAC Board,

          6  probably the first HAC Board member ever that lives

          7  in public housing as well.

          8                 So, I think we are diversifying the

          9  HAC Board in a wonderful way, while at the same time

         10  putting someone of extreme quality and character on

         11  the Board and I certainly urge my colleagues to vote

         12  for her approval.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Well, Ms. Bollis,

         14  we don't have any other questions to ask you.  I

         15  think the sentiment of the Committee is pretty clear

         16  and we look forward to you serving on HAC.  We will

         17  be voting in a few minutes.  You are welcome to

         18  stay, but if you have to leave, we understand.

         19                 MS. BOLLIS:  Thank you very, very

         20  much, all of you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Now we will ask

         22  to come forward Mr. Hugh James Freun, who is being

         23  appointed to the Arts Commission.  I will not read

         24  everything that's there, but just to let you know

         25  that all the members serve on the Commission without
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          2  compensation.  Members serve for three- year terms,

          3  or until a successor has been appointed and

          4  qualified.  He is going to be filling the balance of

          5  a three- year term that expires on December 23,

          6  2005, the lay member replacing Bud Cohime.

          7                 Can you raise your right hand to be

          8  sworn in, please?

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Do you solemnly

         10  swear or affirm the testimony you are about to give

         11  the Committee is the truth and the whole truth?

         12                 MR. FREUN: I do.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please state

         14  your name for the record?

         15                 MR. FREUN: Hugh James Freun.

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Mr. Freun, do you

         18  have an opening statement please?

         19                 MR. FREUN: I do.  May I proceed?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

         21                 MR. FREUN: Good morning everyone,

         22  members of the Council. My name is Hugh Freun and I

         23  have been nominated by Mayor Bloomberg to be an at-

         24  large member of the Art Commission of the City of

         25  New York.
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          2                 I am a born and bred New Yorker and

          3  studied law at NYU Law School.  I've practiced law

          4  in New York City continually since 1971, when I was

          5  admitted to the Bar.  My law practice focuses on

          6  three primary areas; representation of individuals

          7  and families in their estate and personal matters,

          8  commercial and residential real estate, and art law.

          9                 My personal pro bono commitments have

         10  included serving on a number of boards including the

         11  Alliance of Young Artists and Writers in New York

         12  City of which I am particularly proud.

         13                 The Art Commission for me is a

         14  particularly intriguing perspective assignment, if

         15  my nomination is confirmed. Not only because of my

         16  personal interest and experience in the arts, but

         17  more importantly due to the current needs for the

         18  Government of New York City to be vigilant in its

         19  protection, maintenance, repair, development and

         20  conservation of New York City's physical, visual

         21  assets, be it art, architecture, public parks and

         22  plazas and the like.

         23                 New York City with its five boroughs,

         24  its multi cultural population, its diversity and

         25  wide- ranging activities demands a strong municipal
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          2  leadership, which must respond to a large Cities

          3  demands promptly, with integrity and ethics and with

          4  all of the City's population in mind.  This includes

          5  the operations of the Art Commission, which has a

          6  long- standing responsibility for monitoring and

          7  guiding a visual perspective of many of the Cities

          8  cultural treasures.

          9                 At this particular time in the City's

         10  history, the Art Commission has a key- role to play

         11  in maintaining the City's preeminence in the world

         12  as a cultural center, including design excellence,

         13  and appropriate ethnic considerations for the

         14  affected neighborhoods in all five- boroughs.

         15                 I would very much like to be a member

         16  of the Art Commission.  I would welcome any

         17  questions you may have about my qualifications.

         18  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Any questions by

         20  any of the members for Mr. Freun?  Council Member

         21  Katz?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you Mr.

         23  Chair.  Thank you Mr. Freun for being in front of us

         24  this morning.  I just have a question about the Art

         25  Commission.  As you know, or you may not know this,
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          2  but when other applicants have come before this

          3  Committee, I have sort of asked the same question

          4  that I need to ask you, which is basically what type

          5  of standards would you use when something comes

          6  before you?

          7                 As you know the Art Commission really

          8  doesn't have a set guidelines of standards by which

          9  to judge things that come before them.  That has

         10  been a bone of contention at least between me and

         11  several members of the Council and the Art

         12  Commission.

         13                 I was just wondering if you put any

         14  thought into how you would look at a project that

         15  comes across your desk, what types of standards,

         16  should it always be within the general atmosphere of

         17  the neighborhood, should it be seen on an individual

         18  basis, do you think maybe we should create standards

         19  by which the Art Commission should judge the art

         20  work in the City?  No pressure.

         21                 MR. FREUN: I think you have to

         22  determine every project on its individual basis,

         23  taking into consideration the neighborhood within

         24  the borough, the population that is affected by it.

         25  My experience in types of projects, which affect a
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          2  diverse group of interest, is that you have to

          3  understand what the proposal is in all of its

          4  details and understand the constituency that is

          5  affected by it.  I think in the area of visual arts,

          6  physical proposals that change a neighborhood or

          7  affect the people, have to be judged on each

          8  individual merit.  It's hard to come up with a

          9  specific set of standards in an area that can't be

         10  literally interpreted at all times on all projects

         11  in the same manner.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  All right.

         13  That is fine. Thank you Mr. Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         15  Katz, would you like to have the Art Commission in

         16  for a hearing one day?  I think we need to do this.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'd love to have

         18  the

         19  Art Commission in for a hearing one day.  I think

         20  that is a great idea Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  Any other

         22  questions for Mr. Freun?  Seeing none, then I will

         23  thank you for coming.  We will be voting shortly and

         24  at that point no doubt be appointed to the

         25  Commission and you will be hearing from the Mayor's
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          2  Office about what happens next.  Thank you for your

          3  willingness to serve.

          4                 At this point I would like to call

          5  Meenakshi Shinivasan who is coming on board to the

          6  New York City Board of Standards and Appeals.

          7  Members know the background and charter provides for

          8  the establishment of an independent Board of

          9  Standards and Appeals.  The information is in your

         10  package on what standards and appeals are.

         11                 She will be filling a vacant position

         12  for the balance of a six- year term that expires on

         13  October 6, 2009.  At this point we can -- Oh, we

         14  have been joined by Council Member Michael Mc Mahon

         15  from Staten Island and Council Member Madeline

         16  Provenzano from the wonderful borough of the Bronx.

         17                 Would you raise your right hand and

         18  be sworn in please?

         19                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Do you

         20  solemnly swear or affirm the testimony you are about

         21  to give the Committee is the truth and the whole

         22  truth?

         23                 MS. SHINIVASAN: I do.

         24                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Please

         25  state your name for the record.
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          2                 MS. SHINIVASAN: Meenakshi Shinivasan.

          3                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you have an

          5  opening statement?

          6                 MS. SHINIVASAN: Yes, I do.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Can you say it at

          8  this time please.

          9                 MS. SHINIVASAN:  Good morning Chair

         10  Comrie and members of the Committee.  I am Meenakshi

         11  Shinivasan and I am greatly honored to be here today

         12  to present a statement regarding my recommended

         13  appointment as Commissioner of New York Board's

         14  Standards and Appeals.

         15                 This appointment is a unique

         16  opportunity for me, both professionally and

         17  personally.  As one who has dedicated my career to

         18  public service in New York, I look forward to

         19  embracing new challenges in this position and

         20  bringing my considerable experience and expertise to

         21  bear as serving as Commissioner.

         22                 I believe that my longstanding career

         23  as a City Planner and Manager would enable me to be

         24  effective in advancing the Board's mission as a

         25  decision- making body that acts on cases that affect
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          2  growth and development in neighborhoods and

          3  districts throughout the City.

          4                 I have a Masters degree both in

          5  architecture and City Planning and I have had an

          6  extensive career in the field of land- use and urban

          7  policy, including over 13- years in New York with

          8  the Department of City Planning.  My experience at

          9  the Planning Department has afforded me an in- depth

         10  knowledge of land- use and concerning matters

         11  related to New York, the sensitivity to community

         12  concerns and an appreciation for the role of

         13  government and the public process.  I believe that I

         14  would bring a rational planning perspective to the

         15  Board and an astute understanding of development

         16  issues.

         17                 Currently I serve as a Deputy

         18  Director at the Manhattan Borough Office at City

         19  Planning.  Along with the Director, I am responsible

         20  for the overall management and administration of the

         21  25- person borough office including developing and

         22  overseeing an extensive work program and

         23  implementing our portion of the Department's

         24  strategic plan.  I work closely with the Director in

         25  formulating and establishing plans and policies for
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          2  the Borough and advising the Chair, the City

          3  Planning Commission, senior staff in City Hall on

          4  critical planning and public policy issues.  I

          5  direct and supervise all the staff on major planning

          6  studies and projects, as well as manage and

          7  coordinate zoning proposals and development projects

          8  that require discretionary approval by the City

          9  Planning Commission.

         10                 My work enriches my professional

         11  growth in many ways which I believe would be

         12  critical in the position as Commissioner on the

         13  Board.  The Board is the quasi- judicial body that

         14  acts and appeals cases.  More visibly, the Board

         15  also has zoning powers and acts on variance cases to

         16  the zoning code and special permits based on

         17  specific findings.  In acting on these cases, the

         18  Board functions as a safety valve to the zoning

         19  resolution and strengthens, reinforces and ensures

         20  its constitutionality.

         21                 My professional experience has

         22  intimately prepared me in the following ways to

         23  assume this position.  I have knowledge and

         24  expertise in zoning and land- use, including a firm

         25  grasp of the City's intricate regulatory framework,
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          2  its application and its interpretation.  I believe

          3  that such knowledge would be critical in evaluating

          4  cases before the Board.  I have considerable project

          5  management experience on major development proposals

          6  that have involved a large number of stakeholders

          7  with conflicting points of view.  Further, I have

          8  successfully negotiated the resolution of these

          9  conflicts.  As cases come before the Board, it is

         10  necessary to listen and to weigh several factors,

         11  opinions and perspectives in making a decision.  My

         12  management in supervision of staff has resulted in

         13  consistently high quality products and a level of

         14  professionalism that I would also bring to the

         15  Board.  I have established effective working

         16  relationships with community groups, the development

         17  community, civic and other professional groups and

         18  other agencies.  I have considerable experience in

         19  representing the Agency and the Administration both

         20  in public forums and in working with different

         21  communities, developers and their consultants.  This

         22  has required me to articulate policy positions and

         23  guide discussions on a variety of issues and many

         24  venues.  Similarly I have honed the ability to make

         25  sound land- use judgements as my role of Advisor at
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          2  the City Planning Commission.  And, finally, I have

          3  a long- standing investment in City Government and

          4  the public process.

          5                 New York is an extraordinary and

          6  complex City the fact that they show an economic

          7  diversity and I believe in effective and responsible

          8  government is a necessity ensuring its future and

          9  vitality.  The Board contributes to this over-

         10  arching goal by providing a process and remedies

         11  that affect growth and development.

         12                 In this position, I am hopeful,

         13  extremely enthusiastic, and unequivocally determined

         14  to be a part of the process and make my

         15  contribution.  It would be a privilege to serve as

         16  Commissioner on the Board of Standards and Appeals

         17  and I ask your support for my appointment.  Thank

         18  you.  I'm here to answer any questions.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you Ms.

         20  Shinivasan. Council Member Provenzano did you want

         21  to ask a question, you were looking at me like you

         22  wanted to ask a question.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Well, I

         24  like looking at you, but yes I do want to ask a

         25  question.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  I

          3  needed that.

          4                 We have been joined by Council Member

          5  Maria Baez from the Bronx.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Welcome.

          7  I understand that there was a little bit of a

          8  problem originally because you aren't a citizen and

          9  that's been marked out.  How many years have you

         10  been in the United States.

         11                 MS. SHINIVASAN: I have been in the

         12  United States since 1986, about 17, close to 18

         13  years and I have been a resident of New York for the

         14  past 13 years.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I have to

         16  ask, if this issue did not come up where you needed

         17  to become a citizen, somewhere along the way, were

         18  you thinking about becoming a citizen?  Or, is it

         19  something that never occurred to you?

         20                 MS. SHINIVASAN: Citizenship is

         21  clearly --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: -- I know

         23  it's a long process.

         24                 MS. SHINIVASAN: Right.  It is a very

         25  personal thing and clearly I have made a life for
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          2  myself in the U.S. And in New York and I believe

          3  this is my home.  I think the matter of --

          4  Citizenship is really a question of time.  I was

          5  really only eligible to apply for citizenship in

          6  2002 and I applied in 2003. So, I would say that it

          7  was my intention to apply and I applied.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Now, you

          9  don't have to give up your citizenship in your

         10  country, do you?

         11                 MS. SHINIVASAN: I do.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: You do.

         13                 MS. SHINIVASAN: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.  Not

         15  all countries, I think, require that.

         16                 MS. SHINIVASAN: No.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: So, yes I

         18  guess it was a big decision.

         19                 MS. SHINIVASAN: It is a big decision.

         20    Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Yes.

         22  Okay.  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         24  Katz and Council Member Felder.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: What is it, I
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          2  don't get mad. Anyway, thank you for appearing

          3  before us.  So, for the record we've worked together

          4  in many rezonings, over the last year.  I believe it

          5  was Central Harlem and Hudson Square Yards and

          6  something that comes up time and time again from the

          7  BSA to the City Council, is changing the zoning

          8  based on the surrounding area, obviously. What has

          9  come up more often in the last year or two, at least

         10  to the Land- Use Committee has been rezoning based

         11  on the surrounding communities that basically have

         12  been rezoned because of BSA variances.  I guess it's

         13  a personal type peeve of mine.  For the Committee

         14  basically you have an M- 1 zone for instance, let's

         15  just say for instance.  It's now before the

         16  Committee on something. And, applicants keep getting

         17  variances to do R- 6 or R- 8 and then what happens

         18  is an application to the Committee to rezone based

         19  on those R- 6s and R- 8s.  I know you have had a lot

         20  of experience.  Can you just give us your opinion on

         21  that?

         22                 MS. SHINIVASAN: Well, I think at the

         23  BSA itself the decisions should be made clearly on

         24  the case before it. Its authority granted at the BSA

         25  to approve cases based on a set of findings, all of
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          2  which have to be made in order for its approval. I

          3  do believe that over time areas change in their

          4  nature and in their land- use and that in certain

          5  cases it may be legitimate that in fact a trend is

          6  seen through a BSA case that sort of set the

          7  barometer for something that requires a larger

          8  zoning change. However, I think that in making

          9  judgements at the BSA, it is important and critical

         10  to understand what the existing advantages are

         11  surrounding the area and whether in fact the

         12  proposal the proposal in front of the BSA has an

         13  effect on the prevailing neighborhood character.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.

         15                 MS. SHINIVASAN: Does that answer your

         16  question?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm not really

         18  sure.  But, I'm going to let it go since the hour is

         19  late and I see a lot of my other colleagues. I have

         20  a feeling they might bring up sort of the same

         21  thing.  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         23  Felder?  We have been joined by Minority Leader

         24  Jimmy Oddo from Staten Island --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Good morning.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: -- And Council

          3  Member Mike Nelson from Brooklyn.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Good morning.

          5  First, I just wanted to mention to my colleagues

          6  that I think we are honored to have Pat Pacifico

          7  (phonetic) from the BSA with us this morning,

          8  although he is not going to be entertaining any

          9  questions, I think that in terms of the Board it's

         10  wonderful to have somebody who's been and is and

         11  continues to be someone who we can call with

         12  problems regarding the process there and he doesn't

         13  say yes, unless it's yes and he doesn't say no,

         14  unless it's no.  So, that is good. And, the fact

         15  that he has accompanied you is a wonderful thing,

         16  because that means he believes that you are good

         17  candidate.  That means a lot to me and maybe to some

         18  of my colleagues as well.

         19                 Ms. Shinivasan, you live in

         20  Manhattan?

         21                 MS. SHINIVASAN:  That is correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Right.  Do you

         23  know where Brooklyn is?

         24                 MS. SHINIVASAN: Yes, I was a resident

         25  of Brooklyn at one time.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Yes?  Where?

          3                 MS. SHINIVASAN: I lived in Park Slope

          4  and then in Cobble Hill.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I think that

          6  the -- I want to take the flip side of my colleague

          7  Council Woman Katz because I think that the issue

          8  with the rezoning or with variances that are done, I

          9  think that if I may make the analogy, it is like

         10  children there, you have different needs.  In the

         11  City, you have one neighborhood we know, Staten

         12  Island, that just did down- zoning and they are very

         13  excited, my Council colleague Council Member Oddo

         14  and Council Member Mc Mahon and Lanza, there is no

         15  one else on Staten Island.

         16                 But, that is not the way it is in

         17  everywhere in the City.  In fact in some of the

         18  neighborhoods that I represent we want everything

         19  that was down- zoned in Staten Island, to be up

         20  zoned in my neighborhoods.  I think that there is a

         21  balance to be taken, the issue that Council Woman

         22  Katz has taken on.  I think that the City takes

         23  credit and the City Planning has been more proactive

         24  in trying to make decisions that will affect certain

         25  neighborhoods in terms of increasing, you know, the
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          2  zoning that it would allow for additional

          3  construction in certain neighborhoods and down-

          4  zoning in other neighborhoods.

          5                 But, in the interim, the fact is that

          6  it does come before the Board of Standard Appeals.

          7  And I think I would just ask, you don't have to

          8  concentrate on the question, because you don't have

          9  to answer it.  I just would ask that be maintained,

         10  you know that respectfully you maintain that as

         11  well.  There are places that we needed -- the fact

         12  that you do a variance is a good thing in some

         13  neighborhoods and I don't mind.  It's until the City

         14  Planning goes ahead and takes a larger leap and

         15  changes things permanently.  That is the mechanism

         16  by which neighborhoods are able to do what they want

         17  to do and what we think people in the neighborhood

         18  would think is right.  So, I just would ask that you

         19  continue that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         21  McMahon, Clarke and Oddo.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MC MAHON:  Thank you

         23  Mr. Chairman and good morning Ms. Shinivasan?

         24                 MS. SHINIVASAN: Shinivasan.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MC MAHON: Shinivasan,
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          2  I was pretty close.

          3                 MS. SHINIVASAN: That was very close.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MC MAHON: How are you

          5  today?

          6                 MS. SHINIVASAN: Fine, thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MC MAHON: Can you tell

          8  me, have you been, are you appointed now as a

          9  Member, or have you been appointed as the

         10  Chairperson of BSA?

         11                 MS. SHINIVASAN: This is an

         12  appointment as Commissioner, as a member of the

         13  Board.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MC MAHON: And is it

         15  contemplated also that you will become the

         16  Chairperson of BSA?

         17                 MS. SHINIVASAN: I've had

         18  conversations with members of Deputy Mayor

         19  Doctoroff's staff on that matter.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MC MAHON: And it's

         21  Deputy Mayor Doctoroff who recommended you for this

         22  appointment?  Is that correct?

         23                 MS. SHINIVASAN: Yes, that is correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MC MAHON: Do you know

         25  why -- I mean currently the Chairpersonship is
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          2  filled by James Chin from Staten Island, is that

          3  correct?

          4                 MS. SHINIVASAN: That is correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MC MAHON: And do you

          6  know why there would be a change made in the

          7  Chairmanship of BSA?

          8                 MS. SHINIVASAN: I'm not sure I'm

          9  really the right person to answer that question, but

         10  I can venture that the Administration, they feel

         11  that it is important to bring someone new, in a way

         12  to bring a new perspective to the Board and to the

         13  Agency.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MC MAHON: Well, have

         15  you heard, is there any problem with the perspective

         16  that Chairman Chin brings to the Board now?

         17                 MS. SHINIVASAN: I don't believe I

         18  have heard anything on that matter.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MC MAHON: Have you had

         20  any conversations with Mr. Chin about his removal as

         21  Chairperson?

         22                 MS. SHINIVASAN: No, I haven't.

         23  Council Member I would just like to reiterate that

         24  it's potential and I really can't speak to that

         25  situation per se.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MC MAHON: Well, I

          3  understand that but of course I'm somewhat concerned

          4  because as you know Chairman Chin comes from Staten

          5  Island and brings what we like to call a Staten

          6  Island perspective to BSA.  And no offense to you

          7  whatsoever, because we really don't know you that

          8  well, but now we will be losing that perspective and

          9  for no apparent reason.  I am just wondering if you

         10  have heard of any reason that this change is taking

         11  place.  I know you are not under oath so --

         12                 MS. SHINIVASAN: Right.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MC MAHON: -- So I am

         14  just wondering if you heard -- oh I'm sorry, I came

         15  in after you were sworn, I'm sorry.  You are under

         16  oath and so therefore I will not ask you to

         17  speculate other than just to ask.  Other than

         18  bringing a new perspective, you have heard no other

         19  reason that Chairman Chin would be removed from the

         20  Chairpersonship?

         21                 MS. SHINIVASAN: I really -- I'm not

         22  sure I can speculate on that Council Member.  But, I

         23  think just to sort of respond to something that you

         24  said about different perspectives. I'm not sure the

         25  intent is that one loses the Staten Island
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          2  perspective versus something else.  I think that the

          3  Board functions with five Commissioners that all are

          4  together and responsible for making decisions on the

          5  Board.  I think the position of the Chair has other

          6  responsibilities as well, including working with

          7  staff and sort of leading the Administration of that

          8  Agency.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MC MAHON: And is it

         10  Deputy Mayor Doctoroff who made the proposal that

         11  you be the Chairperson of BSA?

         12                 MS. SHINIVASAN: Yes.  That is my

         13  understanding, yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MC MAHON: And, has he

         15  told you why he wants to make this change?  His

         16  specific reason?

         17                 MS. SHINIVASAN: Well, I think it's an

         18  opportunity for the Administration to bring when

         19  it's their appointment to the Agency, which is under

         20  his portfolio.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MC MAHON: Okay. Just

         22  to follow up on Council Member Katz's question about

         23  the variance problem.

         24                 MS. SHINIVASAN: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MC MAHON: One of the
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          2  problems we have is that zoning laws will be in

          3  effect and individuals or developers or whoever find

          4  a way to get around the zoning laws by applying for

          5  variances.  It's a very frustrating thing for the

          6  Council.            We have legislation that came

          7  out of the Zoning and Franchises Committee, the Sub-

          8  Committee under Chairman Avella, which would require

          9  that such applications for variances that go to BSA

         10  would then come back to the City Council for review.

         11    Very much like we have final say in zoning changes

         12  and many things that go before City Planning, which

         13  I know you are aware of from your experience in City

         14  Planning.

         15                 What would your thoughts be on such

         16  legislation that would give the City Council final

         17  review over zoning variance requests that go to BSA,

         18  similar to special permits, let's say that go to

         19  City Planning, what we have the right to call it up.

         20    What would you feel about that type of legislation

         21  that would give us an in- put on these applications

         22  to BSA?

         23                 MS. SHINIVASAN: Well, I think there

         24  is different kinds of applications that come before

         25  the Board.  They have variance cases, they have
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          2  appeal cases and then you have the special permits.

          3  I think that each one is somewhat different in terms

          4  of what should, what is appropriate to come before

          5  the City Council and be called up.  Some of much

          6  more judicial in nature and it seems that the final

          7  action should be before the Board.

          8                 In the case of a special permit,

          9  which functions more like special permits before the

         10  City Planning Commission, then I think that perhaps

         11  has more -- that is something more appropriate to

         12  bring to the City Council.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MC MAHON: So, you can

         14  see room to support that or at least to have a

         15  discussion, of looking at that.

         16                 MS. SHINIVASAN: Right, on certain

         17  kinds of cases.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MC MAHON: Well, let me

         19  just say, and this is in no way a reflection on you,

         20  but I just want to state that there are many people

         21  concerned, eyebrows raised and shaking their heads,

         22  wondering why this change of Chairpersonship at BSA

         23  is being made and of course it is something that we

         24  do not have discretion of power over, but James Chin

         25  has served the people of the City of New York very
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          2  well, all the people and it's something that is very

          3  confusing that we don't understand.  We hope that

          4  the Administration will clarify this.  Thank you.

          5                 MS. SHINIVASAN: Okay. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

          7  Clarke?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you Mr.

          9  Chair.  Ms. Shinivasan, it's an honor to have you

         10  before us.  I've just been looking over sort of the

         11  chain of events here and then in listening to some

         12  of the questions raised by Michael McMahon, I just

         13  want to express my general concern about this

         14  process.

         15                 It seems as so less than a year ago

         16  when you were initially considered for this

         17  position, you had not obtained your citizenship as

         18  of yet.  And, then within less than a year, you were

         19  able to obtain your citizenship and then become a

         20  potential Chairperson for this Committee.

         21                 I'm a bit concerned about your level

         22  of independence in this process and that is going to

         23  be a critical piece here.  I think that we are all

         24  concerned about the development of the City and it

         25  is clear to me that certain things have been
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          2  expedited so that you could ascend to this

          3  Chairpersonship.

          4                 I have applications in my office of

          5  immigrants to this Nation who have been waiting for

          6  years to be sworn in for citizenship and within six-

          7  months you were able to apply and become a citizen

          8  in the City of New York?  That says to me that, you

          9  know, some individuals who were extremely

         10  influential were available to expedite this process

         11  for you.  Speculation, but believe me, we all hear

         12  about INS and the process that it takes to become a

         13  citizen. And, then to come to the table already with

         14  you in mind, not even having interviewed before us,

         15  the replacement of a Chairman.  You know, the

         16  sequence of events here are very strange.  Extremely

         17  strange.  I can understand that you are coming with

         18  a certain level of expertise.

         19                 But, my concern again would be given

         20  all of these events, given the individuals involved

         21  in expediting these events, that you would be able

         22  to maintain your independence in this process.

         23  Being the Chairperson of this very influential body

         24  really requires that level of independence.

         25                 Could you say to us today that given
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          2  all that has transpired within the last year to

          3  ascend you to this level, you would be coming to the

          4  table with your own independence, that there would

          5  not be undo influences in terms of your decision

          6  making ability.  And, finally --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council Member

          8  Clarke, I hate to interrupt you but I want to hear a

          9  detailed answer to that question, but Speaker Miller

         10  is here and he is in a mad rush, so if we could let

         11  him vote so he could go.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And also Deputy

         14  Majority Leader Perkins is on the same mad rush and

         15  Council Member Quinn too? Okay.

         16                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Inaudible word

         17  spoken from audience, not over mic.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: That is very

         19  true, that's always true.  So, if we could

         20  acknowledge them and take their vote at this time.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Certainly, Mr.

         22  Chair.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Speaker, Council

         25  Member Miller.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Aye

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Quinn.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you very

          5  much Mr. Chair. I vote Aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

          7  Perkins.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Aye.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'm sorry to

         10  interrupt you Council Member Clarke because I am

         11  interested in that line of questioning.  So, please

         12  continue.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Certainly.  I

         14  was also reading in your testimony here, and I'm

         15  trying to go to the references here.  You make a

         16  number of statements about the Administration.

         17                 I'm sorry, just permit me a minute

         18  here.  There are a number of indications in here

         19  about being cognizant of the will- oh here it is --

         20  cognizant of the will of the City, of City

         21  government, that BSA should work with City

         22  government, being cognizant of the overall land- use

         23  and development policy and being cognizant again of

         24  the Administration and their will including  -- here

         25  it is.  "I also believe that the complexity of
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          2  certain cases may warrant changes that address

          3  issues raised during public review, including that

          4  of the Administration".

          5                 You know, there is this constant

          6  reference to the Administration and again I guess

          7  just to go full circle, it is very clear that the

          8  Administration went to great lengths to make sure

          9  that you were sent to this seat as Chair.  I am

         10  concerned and I think we would all be concerned that

         11  yes, we recognize what your role is, but there is a

         12  certain level of armed distance and independence

         13  that is required to really serve on behalf of the

         14  people of the City of New York and that be reflected

         15  in the work that you do.

         16                 MS. SHINIVASAN: Right.  Can I respond

         17  to that?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Yes.

         19                 MS. SHINIVASAN: Thank you. I

         20  recognize your concern but I just have to say a

         21  couple of things.  It is true that my appointment

         22  was put forward by the Administration.  But, I just

         23  think that, I just wanted to make clear why that was

         24  put forward.             I think it was put forward

         25  on the basis of my professional capacity, that I've
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          2  had a long- standing career at City Planning in this

          3  Government, that I have been working on land- use

          4  matters and I've shown a record of impartiality and

          5  without any conflicts and I think that is the reason

          6  why they recommend my place on the Board.

          7                 I do not have other kinds of

          8  conflicts related to private sector interest and

          9  other affiliations.  I think that it really speaks

         10  for itself.  I totally and completely believe that

         11  being on the Board requires you to bring a certain

         12  amount of integrity and diligence in terms of making

         13  decisions.  That the decisions that are made will be

         14  based on the cases before the Board.

         15                 I think that I have an appreciation

         16  for listening to a wide variety of opinions,

         17  including that of communities.  I've worked strongly

         18  with communities during my time at City Planning. I

         19  think that is one of the reasons that why they  -- I

         20  feel qualified for this position.

         21                 I believe that it's important that as

         22  cases come before the Board that the issues that are

         23  of great concern to residents and neighborhoods

         24  should be taken into consideration while conferring

         25  a vote.  So, while it may appear that I have been
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          2  supported by this Administration, that finally in

          3  this position, I could use my professional capacity

          4  in making decisions and if I do become the Chair

          5  then in leading the Agency in a similar way. Thank

          6  you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  Council

          8  Member Oddo?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you Mr.

         10  Chairman and good morning. The very well respected

         11  Director of Council's Land- Use Division said

         12  wonderful things about you this morning.  That's a

         13  good thing because that hopefully will help me

         14  overcome some concerns I have and I think expressed

         15  perfectly by Council Members Mc Mahon and Clarke.

         16                 Let me just follow up first on what

         17  Council Member Clarke was talking about, this

         18  question about independence, but with a little bit

         19  of a different angle to it.

         20                 The issue of over- development of

         21  Staten Island and the issue of -- or the involvement

         22  of the Administration in helping us address that

         23  issue I think is well know at this point.  There is

         24  one particular issue that was of deep concern to the

         25  Borough Presidents.  It had to do with this practice
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          2  on Staten Island of taking a zoning lot and sub-

          3  dividing into tax lots.

          4                 The Borough President had a very

          5  distinct opinion on that, I think one shared by

          6  Council Member McMahon and I.  And, the City

          7  Planning Commission had a very different view of it.

          8  And the Borough President wanted to have his sort of

          9  day in court and allow this issue to go before the

         10  BSA.  City Planning absolutely did not want that to

         11  happen.  My concern is the independence of the BSA

         12  from -- Council Member Clarke talked about the

         13  Administration in general, but I'm very specific

         14  from different Agencies.

         15                 The Borough President likes to say

         16  that the BSA is the Supreme Court of Land- Use

         17  issues.  Do you believe that?  And, what can you say

         18  to me and my colleagues that would give us some

         19  comfort level in your independence, specifically

         20  from the Agency you are coming from, but maybe more

         21  to Council Member Clarke's point, that of the

         22  general Administration.

         23                 MS.SHINIVASAN: I recognize that the

         24  Board of Standard Appeals its authority is

         25  completely different from City Planning, and in fact
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          2  traditionally there has been this tension between --

          3  you know, clearly the Department of City Planning

          4  creates and guards the zoning resolution.  The Board

          5  of Standard Appeals has the authority to grant

          6  variances to that resolution. So there has been this

          7  tension.

          8                 I believe completely that there is a

          9  rule for the Board of Standards and Appeals in New

         10  York City Government and in fact by being there it

         11  actually protects the constitutionality of the

         12  zoning code.  I think that a perspective, my

         13  perspective on the Board, would be reformulated, not

         14  necessarily going to come from my perspective as a

         15  planner at City Planning.  I think that it is

         16  incumbent on me to hear the case before me.  There

         17  is a very, very specific set of findings that have

         18  to be made.  I believe that I would draw from the

         19  existing expertise on the Board and follow legal

         20  counsel on making those decisions.  So, I am very

         21  confident that there would be this independence from

         22  the Administration.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: So, when former

         24  bosses and former colleagues come a- ringing on a

         25  particular issue, we should have the confidence of
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          2  your ability to say, thank you very much for the

          3  phone call.  My concern is that there is lines

          4  between City Planning and BSA rules sort of get

          5  blurred and that's troubling on one level.

          6                 Let me ask you this.  Council Member

          7  McMahon asked you about and Council Member Clarke,

          8  and some others probably forgotten the rumor about

          9  this notion becoming Chair, and I know you are not

         10  Chair yet, but you are familiar with the staff that

         11  the Chair of BSA has in terms of how many Counsels,

         12  General Counsels, Deputy Counsels. Are you familiar

         13  with that?

         14                 MS. SHINIVASAN: I am familiar with

         15  that.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Are there

         17  openings right now currently in terms of who the

         18  General Counsel is or Deputy Counsel have.  Have any

         19  of those positions been filled within the last six

         20  months?

         21                 MS. SHINIVASAN: I believe the Counsel

         22  position was open and I believe that's been filled.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: That's filled.

         24  I raise that issue because frankly I've been told

         25  that the position is being filled and is being
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          2  interviewed and hired by folks outside of BSA. And,

          3  again I go to the issue of independence.  If BSA is

          4  supposed to be an independent entity, then I would

          5  assume the Counsels to BSA should be hired by the

          6  BSA and not be interviewed and hired by some outside

          7  Agency.  So, I would ask that if you do become Chair

          8  and you look at high ranking staff, you make a

          9  determination that these folks are hired by BSA, by

         10  you, not by some outside entity who is supposed to

         11  be independent from BSA.

         12                 The other point I would just make, I

         13  would just underscore, I think Council Member

         14  McMahon captured it perfectly. The notion out there

         15  is a, you know, a Staten Island perspective. Jim

         16  Chin, in our minds has done a great job and I don't

         17  understand the need to change.

         18                 But, let's talk about perspective for

         19  a second.      Certainly this Administration has a

         20  new perspective on building vis- a- vis Staten

         21  Island than previous Administrations.  In that vane

         22  and in that light I would ask you, if and when you

         23  do become Chair, to look at this notion of building

         24  in the bed of mapped City streets, that plagues our

         25  districts in the north shore to the mid island to
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          2  the south shore and they go to BSA and BSA rubber

          3  stamps them and then we wonder why we have this

          4  overdevelopment problem on Staten Island.  So, I

          5  would ask that if you do become Chair and we're

          6  talking about new perspectives, that you share the

          7  perspective of this Administration and inject in

          8  some sanity into the process.      Specifically, I

          9  give you one example about building in the bed of

         10  the mapped but unbuilt City streets.  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Any other members

         12  with questions?  Did you have a follow- up Council

         13  Member Felder, you had alluded you might?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Mr. Chairman,

         15  staff just noted that the Executive Director is

         16  here.  Is it possible to bring him up for

         17  questioning, or is that out of line, specifically

         18  about the point of recent hires.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Fine with me.

         20  I'd be happy to bring him up.  Is the Executive

         21  Director here?  Can you step forward please?  Turn

         22  on the mic. And tell us your name for the record

         23  please.

         24                 MR. PACIFICO: My name is Pasqualle

         25  Pacifico.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Can you raise

          3  your right hand and be sworn in please?

          4                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Do you solemnly

          5  swear or affirm the testimony you are about to give

          6  the Committee is the truth and the whole truth?

          7                 MR. PACIFICO: Yes.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please state

          9  your name for the record.

         10                 MR. PACIFICO: Pasqualle Pacifico.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: First let me

         12  just say, Pat you do a great job and we appreciate

         13  all the cooperation you give our office.

         14                 MR. PACIFICO: Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: The question is

         16  and this was something that was shared with me

         17  several months ago, this notion about either Deputy

         18  Counsel or Assistant Counsel being interviewed and

         19  hired by someone outside of BSA and it raises this

         20  issue of independence.  Have there been recent

         21  appointment -- hirees and if so --

         22                 MR. PACIFICO: There has only been one

         23  hiree and that is our General Counsel and he went

         24  through the format of anyone who would be hired at

         25  the BSA, including going -- being interviewed by
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          2  Corp. Counsel, myself and James Chin.  So, there

          3  were a number of people when we finally came to the

          4  determination of who the General Counsel was going

          5  to be.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MC MAHON: Can I just

          7  ask one question if I could?  Mr. Pacifico,

          8  obviously you have heard of my misgivings about this

          9  change in leadership of BSA because it is my

         10  understanding and belief that James Chin has been a

         11  very active and independent member of BSA and now

         12  for some reason Deputy Mayor Doctoroff wants to

         13  change the leadership at this point and put it in --

         14  again no reflection on you madam, but putting in

         15  someone who the Administration has gone to great

         16  lengths to get in here, as pointed out by Council

         17  Member Clarke.

         18                 Should we be concerned about BSA

         19  losing its independent nature at this point because

         20  of these changes?  A casual observer may think, well

         21  you know, Chin is too independent and doesn't do

         22  what the Administration wants, so now the

         23  Administration is trying to put their person in at

         24  the helm.  How would you respond to that?

         25                 MR PACIFICO: Well, first of all it's
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          2  a Mayoral appointment, and second of all no matter

          3  who the Chair is, it's one vote at the Board.  There

          4  are five Commissioners there and it's just one vote.

          5    You have to get a majority of the Board to pass

          6  anything.  So, the question of independence is

          7  really not there on the table for me.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MC MAHON:  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Any other

         10  questions from the members?  At this point I think

         11  we will close the discussion and move to a vote.

         12  Ms. Shinivasan, I think you've understood the

         13  sentiment of the Council Members that they are

         14  looking for BSA to be an independent Agency.

         15                 MS.SHINIVASAN: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: You know, we just

         17  had some legislation pending in the Council this

         18  week, and members should start to really think about

         19  this impending legislation that will probably be

         20  reintroduced next year regarding giving the Council

         21  Members the last bite of the apple with BSA

         22  decisions and having those decisions come back to

         23  the Council if there is some unreadiness about the

         24  level of the decision.

         25                 In light of some of your concerns
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          2  about independence, you might want to take a look at

          3  that legislation that was proposed by Councilman

          4  Avella and co- sponsored by myself, just to make

          5  sure that we have those appropriate checks embodied

          6  when we haven't zoning that is not done according to

          7  what we think the community really wants.  So,

          8  that's a possibility.                             At

          9  this point I will close the discussion and thank you

         10  all for coming this morning. We will call the roll.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Aye on all.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Aye on all.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Baez

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye on all.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Clarke

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Aye on all.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Chairman, may

         23  I be excused to explain my vote, sir.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you.
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          2  Having refrained from the discussion, I feel I need

          3  to stick my two- cents in. First, I enthusiastically

          4  vote aye on Josephine Bollis and as far as Mr. Freun

          5  is concerned I am pleased to see that the

          6  Administration after a lengthy series of appointees

          7  from Columbia Law School has finally decided to

          8  reach out to New York's best law school, so I am

          9  happy to vote for Mr. Freun as well.  I am also

         10  going to vote yes, I am going to try and say her

         11  name right, on Ms. Shinivasan.  However, I also was

         12  a supporter of Mr. Chin.  I think he did an

         13  excellent job and was very, very much cognizant of

         14  input from the community.  Also, while Mr. Pacifico

         15  is here, I want to say I think he has been a very,

         16  very helpful, honest, impartial individual that I

         17  have had the pleasure of dealing with as well.     I

         18  have a great deal of concern that as some issues

         19  come down the pike that the Deputy Mayor for

         20  Economic Development in particular, has an interest

         21  in my district such as Kings Plaza, which may come

         22  before BSA, that this applicant may be somewhat

         23  compromised and that is a great concern to me.

         24                 However, this is a Mayoral

         25  appointment, that I honestly expect -- I always
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          2  believed that the executive should get approval on

          3  their appointments, unless they are not qualified or

          4  of questionable integrity and I certainly don't see

          5  that, either of those things being the case of this

          6  applicant.

          7                 So, I guess what I am saying to you

          8  madam is that I hope that you are able to dissect

          9  yourself from your proponent, particularly in issues

         10  that are going to be of great concern to the

         11  communities in the City that where we might differ

         12  with the Deputy Mayor for Economic Development.  You

         13  are going to be put to the test for that, your one

         14  vote out of five, but your going to be a very

         15  conspicuous vote.

         16                 So, I hope you have heard that and I

         17  hope we can take you at your word, and I hope that

         18  the Mayor is also cognizant of the fact that the

         19  Council is putting forward one of its nominees for

         20  the HHC Board and the Mayor's office respects the

         21  Council's right to make its appointments, just as I

         22  respect the Mayor's right to make his appointments.

         23  So, I vote aye, on all.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Katz

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you Mr.
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          2  Chair and I apologize for having to run in and out.

          3  I am holding another meeting downstairs in the

          4  lounge as I know a lot of us are.  So, I apologize.

          5  I actually got briefed on my way up the stairs on

          6  what was going on up here while I was downstairs.

          7                 I understand the concern of the

          8  Council, as far as independence goes on BSA.  I will

          9  say that the relationship we have had with BSA I

         10  think is a little better then it was when I was in

         11  the New York State Assembly.  I think in the last

         12  few years it has gotten a little better.

         13                 I worked with Ms. Shinivasan on

         14  several projects. I do think she is qualified.  I do

         15  think that she will show independence, despite the

         16  fact she brought Pat Pacifico with her. Pat has been

         17  a good friend to many of us here.  But, we shouldn't

         18  really look at the fact, we shouldn't really

         19  belittle the fact of the independence.  I think it's

         20  an important part.

         21                 A lot of things that have come up in

         22  the Land- Use Committee are also by- products of

         23  what happens at the BSA.  I hope that my question to

         24  Ms. Shinivasan hit home with her so she understands

         25  that as BSA makes these decisions, when it comes to
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          2  my Committee, we will be looking at what BSAs done

          3  to change the neighborhood and making our decisions

          4  on the rezoning.

          5                 I do think she is a qualified

          6  candidate and I do believe she will actually be a

          7  very good member of BSA, she has the history.

          8                 Mr. Freun and the Art Commission,

          9  just one comment. I actually think you are a very

         10  good candidate too.  I do just wish to make comment

         11  on the Art Commission, Mr. Chair.  I like the idea

         12  of bringing the Art Commission to a hearing.  I

         13  would like to hear some of their standards.

         14                 I like the applicants that come

         15  before us to also know that one of the questions we

         16  are going to be asking is.  What type of standards

         17  do you view the Art Commission to have?  Their

         18  authority is immense.  It is something that the

         19  Council should look at.  I vote aye on all of the

         20  candidates.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Weprin

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Aye on all.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: May I be

         25  temporarily excused to explain my vote.  I just want
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          2  to say that I too believe that this candidate is

          3  very qualified but I would like to associate myself

          4  with the remarks of Council Member Fidler.  I think

          5  there is one very easy way of taking this

          6  independence issue off the board and that is for

          7  former employers, employees, colleagues and folks in

          8  the Administration to not put this candidate in that

          9  position.  So, let's say, from now until, pick a

         10  random number say 2012, let's hope that their

         11  members of the Administration that don't put this

         12  candidate in that position that leads to questions.

         13  I vote aye on all.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: 2012?  Okay.  Got

         15  it.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Will members

         17  of the Finance Committee please stay around.  We're

         18  going to start our meeting immediately and it's

         19  going to be a quick meeting.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We're not quite

         21  finished but Finance will be -- we're losing

         22  members?  I'm sorry.

         23                 Just again, Ms. Shinivasan, I hope

         24  that you heard the whirling sentiment of the

         25  Council.
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          2                 I want to congratulate Mr. Freun and

          3  Ms. Bollis.  I want to remind our new Counsel

          4  Committee from the Mayor's Office, Mr. Patrick

          5  Baily, welcome aboard, that Ms. Bollis is being

          6  designated by the Council and we hope her

          7  appointment is pushed through as expeditiously as

          8  possible and hopefully within the next few 60- days,

          9  so that she can serve on that important Committee.

         10  But, welcome aboard, I'm glad to see you here.  As

         11  you know your predecessor has moved on to the

         12  Department of Ed. But we look forward to working

         13  with you and you expediting all of the appointments.

         14                 I do want to note that since our last

         15  meeting and we had questioned the appointments, we

         16  appreciate that the Mayor has moved to appoint most

         17  of our candidates that have been long submitted;

         18  however one appointment which is major remains.  Mr.

         19  Yuen (phonetic) from the Bronx is still being waited

         20  and you have some information on Mr. Yuen that you

         21  can share?

         22                 MR. BAILY: (Speaking from the

         23  audience, not using microphone.).

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Great, so he will

         25  be appointed by the end of the year.  Thank you
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          2  Patrick, so you're jumping right in with both feet.

          3  Thank you very much.

          4                 So that resolves any other questions

          5  that we have. We can announce the vote at this time.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote is 12 in the

          7  affirmative, zero the negative, no abstentions.  All

          8  items are adopted. Council Members, please sign

          9  Committee reports.  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  We will hold the

         11  vote open for the Committee Members that are in

         12  other meetings.  Thank you very much all.  Have a

         13  good morning.  Finance is right now.  Please turn

         14  your books in.

         15                 (Hearing concluded at 12:00 p.m.)
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